1952

# Russell S. Stickle v. Union Pacific Railroad Co. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

(Numbers in parentheses refer to pages of the record.)

The trial court directed a verdict for the defendant (109-112) and from the judgment entered thereon plaintiff prosecutes this appeal.

This is an action brought by plaintiff, an employee of Rademann Guisto Co., building contractors, against the Union Pacific Railroad Company for injuries received by him in unloading a car delivered to his employer by the said railroad company. Workmen's compensation was ob-

tained by plaintiff from the insurance carrier of his employer. The insurance carrier signed a Waiver (Exhibit "J"), wherein the carrier waived its right of subrogation and consented that plaintiff herein could commence and maintain the action in his own name against the Union Pacific Railroad Company.

The trial court in granting defendant's motion for a directed verdict held that the evidence would support a finding that the defendant company was negligent in sending a car to be unloaded which it knew had a defective metal strap and which strap was usually and customarily used to unload cars loaded as was the flatcar here (110).

The trial court based his ruling on the proposition that he believed plaintiff was guilty of contributory negligence as a matter of law and that if the railroad company could see and discover upon reasonable inspection the defective strap, then the plaintiff also could have seen this condition and his failure to see constituted contributory negligence on his part (110). Thus the court failed to make a distinction between the fact that it was the duty of the railroad company to inspect and that it was not the duty of plaintiff to make an inspection. He did, in fact, make a test of the strap involved by placing his weight upon it before mounting to the top of the tank involved (16).

The injury occurred on the 7th day of December, 1949, at approximately 1:30 p.m., in the yards of the Pacific Fruit Express at Pocatello, Idaho (12). The plaintiff was a steel worker employed by Rademann-

Guisto Construction Company and engaged in the erection of buildings for the Pacific Fruit Express. On the date above mentioned, the plaintiff and others were assigned the task of unloading two large steel storage tanks (12). These tanks were loaded on a flatcar which had been delivered by the defendant to the yards in which plaintiff was working (12).

These two tanks were the same size and were loaded on the one flatcar. Each tank was cylindrical in shape, approximately 10 to 12 feet in diameter, 20 feet in length and weighed 27,000 and 30,000 pounds respectively (13 and Exhibit 4).

The tanks were placed on the flatcar end to end. These tanks rested on cribbing on top of the flatcar and each tank was held down by two metal straps which were attached to the sides of the flatcar and extended over the top of the tanks. These metal straps were 3 to 4 inches in width and approximately an eighth of an inch thick, there being testimony that this band was similar to defendant's Exhibit 5. The straps were attached to each side of the boxcar by being looped over a metal band which went around the side of the flatcar. The end of the strap was clamped to the other portion of the strap, thereby forming a loop encircling the metal band on the flatcar (15).

This flatcar was spotted by the defendant in the yards where plaintiff was working. The car had to be towed by truck down to the place where it was to be unloaded (12-13).

Prior to the spotting of this car it had been inspected

by the defendant company (80). The defendant called the witness George H. Cutler, who was the person in charge of the inspection. Cutler identified defendant's Exhibit 1 as indicating that the inspection on this particular car had disclosed there was a broken tie band (81). The witness testified that he had no recollection of this car being bad ordered independent of Exhibit 1 (82). He stated that it was the customary practice to place on every car that is bad ordered a bad order card similar to defendant's Exhibit 2. This would be attached to the car with a stapling machine and where there was a defect such as discovered in this case, they would place the bad order card so that the side specifying light repairs would be facing out (82). This witness also testified that a car like this flatcar, having a broken tie band, was supposed to be sent to the rip track to be repaired (87). This witness did not know whether the car was taken to the rip track or not. He also testified:

"Q. Well, I am saying ordinarily if there is a broken tie band on it they would take it in and repair it, wouldn't they?

"A. Well, ordinarily.

"Q. Because one of those tie bands can be used for one of two things, either for unloading or to hold the storage tank in place, isn't that right?

"A. Yes, sir.

"Q. Isn't that right?

"A. Yes, sir.

"Q. Now you say the cards are finally taken off when they get to the rip track?

"A. The repair track, yes, sir.



“Q. Or the repair track, yes, and until that time they remain on, I take it?

“A. Yes, sir.

“Q. And, of course your only job is just to bad order the car and put that on and you leave it up to the other people what should be done with it?

“A. Yes, sir.”

The witness testified that as a rule these cards are put on the decking of a flatcar. By this he apparently meant on the side of the car (90). Through leading questions defendant's counsel got the witness to testify that a broken tie band would not render travel unsafe to the point where the car would be unloaded and that it would be safe to move from the point of inspection to the customer (90-91). He conceded, however, that if he figured these straps would be used in unloading the car, he would see to it that they were fixed before the car was sent to the customer (92).

When the car was finally spotted for loading, it was on a track running in a north and south direction. Cribbing had been placed in position on the ground upon which the tank was to be placed. The first strap to be used was that on the south end of the car. The plaintiff used a blowtorch in cutting the strap on the east side. The usual and customary method of unloading a tank such as this from a flatcar, was to place cables underneath the tank and to attach the ends of the cable to a crane, then to hoist the tank from the flatcar and finally lower it onto the cribbing prepared for it. This necessitated the presence of a man on top of the tank in order to connect the cables to

the crane. One of the usual and customary ways for the man to place himself on top of the tank was to climb up the side of the tank, using the strap to pull himself on top (16). Before the plaintiff ascended the strap, he placed his weight on it to see if it would hold him (16). It did and seemed solid and secure (36) and he then commenced to ascend. When he was almost on top, the strap broke on the other or west side and he fell to the ground on his feet and suffered severe fractures in his ankles and legs (16, 18).

As plaintiff fell, he carried with him the strap, pulling it down onto the east side of the car (17). After he was made as comfortable as possible, examination was made of the strap where it had broken. It appeared that a quarter of an inch or less showed a bright clean break and the rest of the break showed that it was corroded and rusted, thereby indicating that it had been broken for some period of time (17, 55).

Neither the plaintiff (47, 106) nor the foreman (56, 105) saw any bad order card on the car and they were not informed of the fact that anything was wrong or defective about the metal strap which had been broken. They made no inspection of the band because they knew that the railroad company made inspection before the cars were unloaded by the consignee (48) and relied upon that inspection and upon the assumption that the bands or straps were in first class shape (43). In further discussing this break the plaintiff's witnesses stated that they would not notice this break unless they were looking for it (55-56) and examined it for that purpose (17, 44).

The foregoing evidence is substantially all that relates to the question of liability in this case. We will not detail the medical evidence because it is not of importance on the question before the court. All that need be said is that the plaintiff was seriously injured, remained in the hospital from four to five months, was unable to work for a period of a year and the injuries have caused permanent disability.

## STATEMENT OF POINTS

### POINT I.

PLAINTIFF WAS DENIED HIS RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IN VIOLATION OF THE CONSTITUTION AND APPLICABLE AUTHORITIES.

### POINT II.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT THE PLAINTIFF WAS GUILTY OF CONTRIBUTORY NEGLIGENCE AS MATTER OF LAW.

### POINT III.

THERE WAS SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE INTRODUCED THAT THE DEFENDANT WAS NEGLIGENT IN THAT IT FAILED TO REPAIR OR TO GIVE WARNING OF THE BROKEN TIE BAND TO PERSONS WHO WOULD UNLOAD THE TANKS FROM THE FLATCAR.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I.

PLAINTIFF WAS DENIED HIS RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IN VIOLATION OF THE CONSTITUTION AND APPLICABLE AUTHORITIES.

We strenuously assert that the ruling of the court in directing a verdict and refusing to permit the jury to determine the facts has resulted in a denial to plaintiff of his right to a trial by jury.

When a tribunal has been selected to determine conflicting and disputed issues of fact, the right of that tribunal to make the determination should remain inviolate.

Where reasonable minds may differ upon the finding of a factual proposition, then the jury should be permitted to make the determination and the court should not usurp its function. We respectfully submit that the trial judge usurped the function of the jury in this case.

This court in the case of *Shortino v. Salt Lake & U. R. Co.*, 52 Utah 476, 174 P. 860, at page 866 set forth the rule to be followed by trial courts in determining whether or not a case should be submitted to the jury. This court stated:

“That the question of contributory negligence on the part of the plaintiff, like that of the negligence of the defendant, is for the jury, where the evidence and the inferences to be deduced therefrom are such that reasonable men may arrive at different conclusions, has so often been decided by this court that the proposition has, in effect, become elementary.

“In other words, if there is any substantial doubt whether a plaintiff was or was not guilty of contributory negligence, or whether, if negligent, such negligence was the proximate cause of the injury, the court cannot determine the right to recover as a matter of law, but must submit the

question of contributory negligence or of proximate cause, or both, to the jury as questions of fact.”

Again this court stated in *Newton v. Oregon Short Line R. Co.*, 43 Utah 219, 134 P. 567, 570:

“Where, therefore, the circumstances are such that it may reasonably be said that different minds, in viewing and considering the evidence, might arrive at different conclusions with respect to whether or not the injured person exercised ordinary care, the question of negligence must of necessity be determined as one of fact and not of law. While the substance of the foregoing statement is often found in the books and may be said to be a correct statement of the doctrine, yet such statements often leave the reader in doubt whether a given case falls within or without the doctrine. But, notwithstanding this, it is impossible to formulate a rule by which all cases can be determined.

“All that can be said is that, unless the question of negligence is free from doubt, the court cannot pass upon it as a question of law; that is, if after considering all the evidence and the inferences that may be deduced therefrom the court is in doubt whether reasonable men, in viewing and considering all the evidence, might arrive at different conclusions, then this very doubt determines the question to be one of fact for the jury and not one of law for the court. The court can pass upon the question of negligence only in clear cases. All others should be submitted to the jury. The reason of this is apparent from the fact that in this state all questions of fact are for the jury; and therefore, unless it is clear that in viewing and considering the evidence reasonable minds

might not arrive at different conclusions, the case should go to the jury."

To the same effect see *Malizia v. Oregon Short Line R. Co.*, 53 Utah 122, 178 P. 756 and *Steed v. Rio Grande W. Ry. Co.*, 29 Utah 448, 82 P. 476.

We submit that under the foregoing rules the refusal of the trial court to permit determination of this case by a jury constituted a violation of plaintiff's right to a trial by jury, the tribunal selected to hear and determine issues of fact.

## POINT II.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT THE PLAINTIFF WAS GUILTY OF CONTRIBUTORY NEGLIGENCE AS MATTER OF LAW.

This court has given recognition to the authorities heretofore cited in *Moore v. Miles*, 108 Utah 167, 170, 158 P. 2d 676, wherein the court stated:

"\* \* \* In this jurisdiction we are committed to the doctrine that the question of contributory negligence is one for the jury, where as said in *Carpenter v. Syrett*, 99 Utah 208, 104 P. 2d 617, 619, 'different conclusions may be reasonably drawn by different minds from the same evidence  
\* \* \* ,'"

We submit that reasonable minds could reach different conclusions on the proposition of whether or not the plaintiff in this case was guilty of contributory negligence.

At the very beginning the court was following an

entirely erroneous concept concerning contributory negligence. He took the utterly defenseless position that the burden of proof was upon the plaintiff to free himself from contributory negligence. The court stated (111):

“\* \* \* but the fact that somebody is hurt doesn't entitle him to take money away from somebody else who isn't responsible for his injuries and, of course, he must overcome and must show that he, himself, is not guilty of any fault that contributed to his injury, because if he doesn't show that under the law he is not entitled to recover.”

Apparently the trial judge had the idea that it was incumbent upon plaintiff to establish by a preponderance of the evidence that he was not guilty of contributory negligence. To establish that such statement is erroneous certainly needs no citation of authority.

There can be little wonder that the trial court reached the erroneous result that defendant was entitled to a directed verdict when it started out with the proposition that the burden was upon plaintiff to prove his freedom from contributory negligence. Consideration of the evidence in this case will clearly establish that the question of contributory negligence was for the jury in this case.

The plaintiff and his foreman had the task of unloading the tanks from the flatcar. Theirs was not a duty to inspect. Precautions might be expected from them as reasonably prudent persons in the performance of their job. As matter of fact, the plaintiff tested the strap to see whether or not it would bear his weight when he



grabbed hold of it and caused his weight to be exerted against the strap. The strap held his weight. A reasonable man could well find that this test so made by plaintiff was all that needed to be done in the exercise of reasonable care, and that a reasonably prudent person would have done no more to protect himself.

In making a determination of whether plaintiff acted with reasonable care, we must take into consideration all of the surrounding circumstances. One of those circumstances was his knowledge that the railroad company made inspection of the cars before they were unloaded. The foreman stated that he knew of this custom and that in the unloading of cars, such custom was relied upon by him in unloading cars. With these men knowing and relying upon the inspection of the railroad, certainly we cannot say that all reasonable minds would necessarily conclude that a person employed to unload the tanks would make minute inspection of the load and cars to determine whether or not they could be unloaded with absolute safety to himself. As indicated, the plaintiff did make a test and we submit that this test should have been enough to make a jury question of the proposition of whether or not he was in the exercise of reasonable care in climbing to the top of the tank after making the test stated.

The courts have recognized that the railroad in effect represents to a consignee and his employee that a car is in a reasonably safe condition to be unloaded and certainly an employee should be entitled to rely upon that representation.



In *Folsom v. Lowden*, 157 Kan. 328, 139 P. 2d 822, 826, the court stated:

“Appellee is the delivering carrier. The general rule is that a railway company, when it delivers a car of freight to a consignee to be unloaded, in the absence of notice to the consignee to the contrary, represents to the consignee, or his employee, that the car is in reasonably safe condition to be unloaded.”

The court in *Paul v. Georgia Railway & Banking Co.*, 60 Ga. App. 461, 4 S. E. (2d) 99, found that a jury question on contributory negligence was presented in the case. In doing so it determined that the plaintiff could rely upon an assumption that the defendant had discharged its duty toward plaintiff. In that case the plaintiff and others were unloading cars and as they moved the next-to-the-last car, the last car also moved and plaintiff was injured because of this movement. The defendant railroad company had spotted the car and plaintiff was permitted to rely upon the discharge by the defendant of its duty to adequately set the brakes on this car. The court stated:

“\* \* \* The petition alleged that the plaintiff had the right to expect that the defendant had exercised ordinary care in placing said car and in applying the brakes so that it would not move when the car in front of it was moved. It alleged that after the front car had been moved a short distance he discovered that the last car was rolling toward him about to catch him between the cars and that when he discovered this it was too late to get out of the way, although he did everything

possible. This allegation makes a jury question and it was error to sustain the general demurrer."

The trial court in giving his reasons for directing a verdict stated (110-111):

"Now in this case he is charging the railroad with having been negligent in that they failed to exercise reasonable care for his safety and the law says, by the same token, that the plaintiff must exercise reasonable care for his safety and the evidence in this case shows, by the plaintiff himself, that had he walked around and looked at this strap that he was about to use as a ladder to climb up this side of this tank that he would have seen that the strap was torn and that it probably was not safe.

"Now the railroad, he says, should have done that and should have warned him. In other words, he is charging the railroad with the same thing that the evidence shows he failed to do for his own safety and the doctrine and well settled law is that if a person is himself guilty of negligence which contributes to his own injury that that is fatal to his right to recover against somebody else, and it is on that basis that I have determined as a matter of law, and without any question of fact, that the plaintiff ought not to be permitted to recover against the railroad in this instance."

We respectfully submit that the trial court erroneously placed a duty of inspection on the plaintiff and classified that duty as being the same as the duty of the defendant, to make inspection of the car and its load.

He held as matter of law that it was incumbent upon the plaintiff to make careful inspection of the strap. He required that this inspection be made by a visual examination of all parts of the strap and we assume that he would be required under this ruling of the court to inspect all parts of the car. We have found no case which imposes any such duty upon the plaintiff. He did make a test of the strap, which we believe a jury could find constituted an exercise of reasonable care in that regard.

Because the defect in the strap could be found by looking for it, does not mean that plaintiff was guilty of negligence because he did not see it. He had no duty to inspect, that was the duty of the defendant. If a person has no required duty to look, certainly the fact that he does not see because he did not look cannot establish negligence on his part as matter of law. If the defect could not have been seen by looking, then it would have been a latent defect and there would have been no liability on defendant. This latent defect rule seems well established. See *Erie R. Co. v. Murphy*, 108 F. 2d 817; *Mickelson v. Erie R. Co.*, 106 N.J.L. 147, 147 A. 535. There was no duty to inspect so far as the consignee, Rademann-Guisto Co. was concerned. *Pennsylvania R. Co. v. Hummel*, 167 F. 89. If there was no duty on the part of plaintiff's employer to inspect, then certainly there was no duty on the part of plaintiff to make inspection. Plaintiff's task was to use the strap, not to inspect it, and the jury could have found that since he was going to use it, the test he applied, of his own weight, would constitute

an exercise of reasonable care for his own safety and hence would have made it a jury question.

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