1952

Russell S. Stickle v. Union Pacific Railroad Co. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

PLAINTIFF WAS NOT DENIED HIS RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IN VIOLATION OF THE CONSTITUTION AND APPLICABLE AUTHORITIES.

In connection with this point appellant urges upon this court the proposition that the question of contributory

negligence is for the jury where the evidence and the inferences to be deduced therefrom are such that reasonable men might arrive at different conclusions, citing four or five authorities from this court in support thereof. We are at a loss to understand why such an elementary and fundamental proposition of law should be briefed for this court. This case is not one under the Federal Employers' Liability Act and the conception of negligence as laid down by the Supreme Court of the United States under such act should not be extended to all other cases in the law, particularly where as here it is not a suit by an employe against his employer. Not only in this connection but in connection with appellant's brief as a whole it might be well to refer to the statement of Mr. Justice Wolfe in the case of *Eugene W. Raymond v. Union Pacific Railroad Company*, 113 Utah 26, 191 P. 2d 137, which involved the same defendant and the same counsel. It was another suit by an employe of a consignee, who, in total disregard of every reasonable, sensible measure for his own safety, was injured on a car which this defendant had delivered to his employer. After receiving full compensation under the appropriate act he brought suit against this defendant and was nonsuited because of his contributory negligence, which judgment was affirmed. This court with respect to "Point I" said:

"It has been strenuously argued by plaintiff that this decision has deprived him of his constitutional right to a jury trial. That contention has been urged upon this court in almost every case of non-suit and directed verdict brought before us. This court is charged with the duty of protecting all of the rights of all litigants. This is especially true of those fundamental rights guaranteed by the State

and Federal Constitutions. But the right to have a jury pass upon issues of fact does not include the right to have a cause submitted to a jury in the hope of a verdict where the facts undisputably show that the plaintiff is not entitled to relief."

POINT II.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN HOLDING THAT THE PLAINTIFF WAS GUILTY OF CONTRIBUTORY NEGLIGENCE AS A MATTER OF LAW.

After defendant's motion for a directed verdict was made and the court had listened to arguments thereon, the trial judge took the matter under advisement until the following morning. When the jury returned the following morning the judge, having determined that he should direct a verdict, spent some 10 or 15 minutes speaking somewhat informally to the jury in connection with his dismissing them from further service in the case (Tr. 101-103). In following this highly commendable practice, which is no more than a display of good manners and judicial courtesy on the part of the trial judge toward the jury, it is doubtful that the trial court considered he was delivering a technical oral legal opinion which would be subjected to what we consider the rather captious criticism now made by appellant's counsel. The trial judge did make the unfortunate statement attributed to him by appellant's counsel on page 11 of his brief, which statement of the law is unquestionably erroneous. Appellant's counsel says that

the trial judge, "Took the utterly defenseless position that the burden of proof was upon the plaintiff to free himself from contributory negligence", and "Apparently * * * had the idea that it was incumbent upon plaintiff to establish by a preponderance of the evidence that he was not guilty of contributory negligence." Appellant's counsel on numerous occasions in the past, when we were also present as counsel for the defendant, has heard the Honorable Ray Van Cott, Jr. instruct the jury that the defendant has the burden of proving contributory negligence of the plaintiff, and must prove it to the satisfaction of the jury by a preponderance of the evidence. Charging the trial court in this instance with ignorance of such an elementary and basic principle in the trial of personal injury suits seems particularly unwarranted in view of the fact that Judge Van Cott, prior to the time he made the unfortunate statement referred to and early in his talk to the jury, said: "The doctrine and well-settled law is that if a person is himself guilty of negligence which contributes to his own injury, that fact is fatal to his right to recover against somebody else, *and it is on that basis* that I have determined as a matter of law and without any question of fact that the plaintiff ought not to be permitted to recover against the railroad in this instance" (Tr. 101, 102). "The evidence in this case shows, *by the plaintiff himself*, that had he walked around and looked at this strap that he was about to use as a ladder to climb up this side of this tank that he would have seen that the strap was torn and that it probably was not safe" (Tr. 101). The court did not purport to discuss "burden of proof", "preponderance of the

evidence", or the rules of law governing the direction of a verdict in any technical sense. Only desperation over a cause without merit can account for counsel grasping at this straw.

This court must examine the facts in the record and from the record alone determine whether or not there is any substantial conflict in the evidence on contributory negligence which would warrant submitting the case to the jury and whether or not there is any substantial evidence of the defendant's negligence which would warrant submitting the case to the jury. There may be situations where the court itself is deciding a question of fact and where the record discloses that because of a misconception of the law the court reached such a dubious result as warrants reversal. An example might be where the court found a defendant guilty of a criminal offense by a misapplication of law to an undisputed set of facts. But that is not this case, and even though it be ridiculously assumed that Judge Van Cott did not understand the law, it does not change the facts in this record upon which the case must be affirmed or reversed.

Turning now to the facts in the record bearing upon the contributory negligence of the plaintiff, there is but one suggestion made for submitting the case to the jury, viz: that the plaintiff put his weight on the tie band as he started to climb the same and thus "tested it". The appellant does not mention one single piece of evidence in the entire record which would indicate that the plaintiff exercised any care for his own safety, for the simple reason that there is no evidence in the record that he did so. On

the contrary, both he and his foreman admitted in their testimony that they did nothing whatsoever to ascertain whether or not it was safe to use the tie band in the manner it was used. The entire testimony which counsel says raises an issue of fact that warrants submitting this case to the jury because plaintiff "tested" the strap, appears on page 7 of the transcript and is as follows:

Questions by Mr. Roberts:

"Q. All right. Now after you cut through the band with this torch then what did you do, please?

"A. Then the crane was moving over there from the other side; we was going to spot the crane on the other side, so someone had to go up on top to hook the crane. *So I grabbed ahold of the metal band and proceeded to crawl up.* I got just about on top when it broke on the other side.

"Q. Now is there anything you did in connection with *testing* this strap before you went up?

"A. I just put my weight on it to see if it would hold is all.

"Q. And did it?

"A. It held me, yes" (Tr. 7).

If the plaintiff had done anything other than, as he said, "grabbed ahold of the metal band and proceeded to crawl up", it seems to us he would have said so without prompting by counsel. Even when prompted by his counsel with the leading suggestion that he "tested" the strap, he would only say, "I just put my weight on it to see if it would

hold is all.” Of course the plaintiff could not start climbing the strap without putting his weight thereon before his feet were off the bed of the flatcar. It is all too obvious that he simply took hold of the metal band and proceeded to crawl up. His foreman on direct examination, questioned by his counsel Mr. Roberts, testified as follows:

“Q. And did Mr. Stickle start to go up?

“A. Yes.

“Q. Where were you at the time he did?

“A. I was standing on the ground, right at the side of the car.

“Q. And will you tell us what you saw? Just *describe what he did* and what happened.

“A. *Well, he come on the car and grabbed ahold of the strap and started climbing up. He got nearly to the top and it give way and he fell*” (Tr. 46).

Counsel reiterates again and again in argument that the plaintiff “tested” the strap before climbing and that this made a question for the jury as to whether or not the plaintiff was exercising due care for his own safety. If the plaintiff had had the slightest interest in whether or not the strap was sufficient to support his weight all he would have had to do was to look at it, as the tear in the strap was readily apparent as testified to by both the plaintiff and his foreman Evans (Tr. 8, 35, 62, 96, 98). The only statement in the record suggesting that the plaintiff “tested” the strap came from his counsel. The plaintiff by his own testimony made no examination whatsoever,

nor was any examination made by plaintiff's foreman, of the condition of the car or of the load. On direct examination the plaintiff testified:

"Q. Did you see this band from the other side of the car, where it had broken?

"A. Yes. They went over and got it because they wanted to know what was, why it broke and they went over and examined it afterwards.

"Q. When you say, 'they went over' what do you mean?

"A. They went over and picked it up right where it was laying. I drug it right down to the ground with me.

"Q. You drug it down on your side?

"A. Yes.

"Q. And this particular metal band would be which one; the one that broke?

"A. The one on the south end of the tank.

"Q. Would you describe for us, please, the condition of this band as you observed it there?

"A. Yes. It was, it had evidently had quite a jar some place during the trip and it had broke almost in two. There was a fresh tear of less than a quarter of an inch left and the rest had all rusted over, so it had been broken for some time.

"Q. And as you looked at it there could you observe that condition; as you saw it?

"A. If you had've went over there and examined it you could have, yes" (Tr. 8).

On cross-examination the plaintiff testified:

Questions by Mr. Bronson:

“Q. Of course you didn’t make any inspection of the car?

“A. *None whatsoever*” (Tr. 39).

And further:

“Q. And even without a bad order card tacked on the car had you been inspecting the car, observing this band that you were going to use to pull yourself up with, you could have seen that it was broken, is that right?

“A. Yes sir, that’s right” (Tr. 98).

Plaintiff’s foreman Evans testified on cross-examination, referring to the car:

“Q. And you didn’t inspect it, is that right?

“A. No.

“Q. And none of your men inspected it?

“A. No.

“Q. And Mr. Stickle didn’t inspect it?

“A. No, I don’t think so.

“Q. And yet the break in that band was such, you have told us, that it was readily observed if somebody had been inspecting those bands?

“A. Yeah, if you had been inspecting them.

“Q. You could have readily observed that, is that right?

“A. I think so” (Tr. 62).

The plaintiff and his foreman were both experienced steel men, the plaintiff having worked all over the United States in steel for approximately 12 years. He had assisted in the unloading of 50 to 75 similar tanks from flatcars and had personally gone on top of such tanks 20 to 30 times (Tr. 5, 30). The plaintiff and his foreman and the rest of the gang, all experienced steel men, had spent between thirty minutes and one hour about the car preparing it for unloading prior to the time the plaintiff was injured (Tr. 34, 35). The plaintiff himself used a torch to cut, on the east side of the car, the tie band which he used to climb on top of the tank with.

Appellant's counsel contends that because the plaintiff and his foreman knew that railroads customarily inspect cars before delivering them to a consignee, they had a right to assume that the car was in reasonably safe condition for unloading. Assuming this to be true, it does not relieve plaintiff of all responsibility. The defendant was not an insurer of plaintiff's safety. It cannot be contended that because the railroad company inspects the car before delivery the consignee or his employees are relieved of the duty to exercise reasonable care for their own safety. The undisputed evidence in this case is that the defendant company made an inspection of the car and its lading upon arrival at Pocatello, discovered the broken tie band, and gave notice thereof to the consignee. A record thereof was made at the time, which record is required to be preserved by the American Association of Railroads (Defendant's Exhibit 1; Tr. 72, 86). Upon discovery of such a defect and the making of a permanent record thereof, such as was

done in this case, a bad order card (a sample thereof being defendant's Exhibit 2) was stapled to the side of the bed of the flatcar and written thereon was a reference to the specific defect "broken tie band" (Tr. 72, 73). Defendant's witness George S. Cutler, the inspector who found the defect and made the record thereof (Defendant's Exhibit 1), said that in the light of the records he would say he *did* place such a bad order card on the car (Tr. 72). That he had no independent recollection of placing a bad order card with the notation "broken tie band" upon the particular car in question. Owing to the great lapse of time and the many hundreds of cars he had inspected between the date of the accident and the date of trial, he could not testify otherwise. It is true that both the plaintiff Stickle and his foreman Evans testified that they did not observe any bad order card on the car, but in view of the fact that they made no examination of the car, yet were familiar with bad order cards and recognized the importance of paying heed to them when found on cars (Tr. 96, 97), such testimony does not even have the weight of negative evidence. Assuming the car did not carry a bad order card, it would not relieve plaintiff of exercising due care to avoid injury on account of a clearly obvious defect in the load.

The appellant says at page 11 of his brief that, "Theirs was not a duty to inspect. Precautions might be expected from them as reasonably prudent persons in the performance of their job." The appellant thus admits that the plaintiff was required to exercise reasonable care for his own safety. This is all we have ever contended for or now contend for on this appeal. The appellant apparently seeks

to point out a distinction between the type of inspection required to be made by the railroad company and the type of inspection or examination which the consignee or his employes has a duty to make. That such a distinction exists in some types of cases may be admitted. In cases where a defect is found to exist in the car itself rather than in the load, the consignee, although he observes the defect or is warned about it and is nevertheless injured, can under some decided cases have the question of his contributory negligence submitted to a jury. The question of his contributory negligence under such circumstances does not depend solely upon whether he was warned of the defect or observed it himself, but in particular upon the question of whether or not he *fully appreciated* the danger therefrom on account of his lack of knowledge or experience with the construction and functioning of various parts of railroad cars that may be out of order. Many parts of railroad cars themselves consist of mechanical contrivances, the functioning of which laymen are not entirely familiar with. For instance, a dock laborer might observe a defect of some kind in a power brake or a car door or be warned by the railroad company about such defect and thereafter be injured because he did not fully appreciate the danger inherent in such defect. Under such circumstances, it is quite proper to submit the question of contributory negligence to a jury. In the case at bar it was not a defect in the car that caused the injury, but a defect in the load—a defect in the tie band holding the tanks on the car. This was a condition that the plaintiff and his foreman should have known a great deal more about than the railroad inspectors

should be required to know in view of the plaintiff's experience as a steel worker and the large number of similar loads he had assisted in unloading.

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